City Council Initiatives

Basic Work Plan Outline for FY 2015 & FY 2016

ADOPTED

January 13, 2015

Contents

Goal Area 1:	Historic Character & Vitality	3
Initiative:	Renwick Building	3
Initiative:	Archaeology Ordinance	4
Goal Area 2:	Character of the City and Neighborhoods	5
Initiative:	Develop two "Neighborhood, Small Area" land use plans	5
Goal Area 3:	Economic Vitality	7
Initiative:	Economic Development Analysis and Master Plan	7
Initiative:	Develop Baseball Stadium and Training Complex	9
Initiative:	Downtown Parking Garage #2	10
Goal Area 4:	Sustainability and the Natural Environment	11
Initiative:	Prepare an Assessment of the City's Water and Sewer System	11
Initiative:	Develop a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Plan	13
Initiative:	Modify Solid Waste Collection Program	14
Goal Area 5:	Parks, Recreation, and Open Space	16
Initiative:	Prepare A/E Plans for Riverfront Park	16
Initiative:	Improve Access to Alum Springs Park	17
Goal Area 6:	Public Safety	18
Initiative:	Provide All-hours ALS Capability	18
Initiative:	Upgrade City's Public Safety Radio System	19
Initiative:	Prepare A/E Plans for Fire Station #3	20
Goal Area 7:	Transportation	21
	Maximize VDOT Revenue Sharing Funds for Transportation	
Goal Area 8:	Governance	22
Initiative:	IT Strategic Plan - Begin Implementation	22
Initiative:	Continue Implementing Novak Report	25
Initiative:	Proffer Policies	26
Goal Area 9:	Education	27
Initiativa	School Enrollment	27

Goal Area 1: Historic Character & Vitality

Initiative: Renwick Building

Determine the future re-use of the Renwick Building, and advance planning activities necessary to implement the preferred re-use concept.

Project Team: Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager (Lead)

Bill Freehling, Asst. Director of Econ. Development and Tourism

Robert K. Antozzi, Director of PRPF

Erik Nelson, Senior Planner

City Council Champion: Ms. Devine

Discussion:

The preservation and re-use of the historic Renwick building is very important. The procurement of a Historic Structure Report for the Renwick courthouse, the Old Jail building, and the School Board headquarters building will provide much-needed information to the Council, potential private re-developers, and the community.

Once the Historic Structure Report is received, the Council and the wider community can have a public discussion about potential options to re-develop and re-use the building or buildings.

Schedule:

The City will need to procure the Historic Structure Report, starting with selection of a qualified firm or team of firms during January and February 2015. The results of the study should be available during the summer of 2015, which will help inform the discussion of the various options approximately during September or October of 2015. Depending upon the results of the discussion, the staff will assist in the development of Requests for Proposals on the re-development and the selection of a proposal approximately December 2015 – February 2016.

Initiative: Archaeology Ordinance

Develop an archaeology ordinance and provide the necessary staffing resources for implementation.

Project Team: Kathleen Dooley, City Attorney (Lead)

Erik Nelson, Senior Planner Intern, City Attorney's Office

Working Group

City Council Champion: Mr. Kelly

Discussion:

The goal of this project is to produce an ordinance to require archaeological studies and the collection and preservation of artifacts during the development of sites within of the City with known historical or archaeological significance. The ordinance would become a part of the zoning regulations in the Unified Development Ordinance.

The City Council adopted a goal to develop an archaeology ordinance as part of its 2012-2014 biennial goals and initiatives. During that time, an archaeology task force met and conducted discussions on this topic. However, the desired ordinance was not developed. The City Council named the archaeology ordinance as one of its 2014-2016 goals and initiatives at its biennial retreat.

Code of Virginia §15.2-2306 authorizes Virginia localities to provide that a development applicant must submit documentation that any development in an area of the locality of known historical or archaeological significance will preserve or accommodate the historical or archaeological resources. The City of Alexandria, Virginia, has adopted such an ordinance.

The project should commence by collecting and reviewing the work of the Archaeology Working Group from the previous biennium. This group made substantial progress on questions such as the historic area for application of the requirements, the development triggers for the requirement of an archaeological study, the proposed hiring of a City archaeologist, and the means for preserving any artifacts identified during the excavation process. City Council should appoint a new working group, including carry-over members from the previous group.

The working group would work with the City Attorney and Senior Planner to develop a legislative proposal for public consideration.

Schedule:

The project could commence in the spring or early summer, 2015. The City Attorney could assign the summer intern to assist with this project.

Goal Area 2: Character of the City and Neighborhoods

Initiative: Develop two "Neighborhood, Small Area" land use plans

Develop two "neighborhood, small area" land use plans (in concert with the City Planning Commission.)

Project Team: Chuck Johnston, Director of Community Plan. & Building (Lead)

Erik Nelson, Senior Planner

Planning Commission

Consultants & Others (as necessary)

City Council Champion: Mr. Frye

Discussion:

The proposed 2014 Comprehensive Plan update identifies 10 areas of the City for Area Plans. These Area Plans are intended to apply in a detailed fashion the Comprehensive Plan Goals, Policies, and Initiatives to each of these neighborhoods. Each of the areas generally consists of at least one central spine of commercial activity and the adjacent residential areas that are the closest market to the commercial activity and most directly affected by it.

The 2007 Comprehensive Plan also divides the City into 10 planning areas, but these areas generally use commercial corridors as their edges. This inhibits a comprehensive view of the corridor and adjoining areas. Such boundaries run contrary to the "JumpStart!" report, which encouraged corridor planning. The 2007 Comprehensive Plan includes brief land use sections for each planning area that identify in a cursory manner key issues, significant existing land uses, environment factors, historic resources, and planned transportation improvements and other infrastructure. These plans go on to list, on average, two or three key vacant parcels in the planning area and describe appropriate uses in often less than five lines and briefly list general and specific recommendations. The 2014 Plan generally carries forward this information and statements, reorganized based on the corridor centric boundaries as interim guidance for land use decisions.

It is proposed that each of the interim land use sections be replaced by Area Plans that has the following characteristics:

- 1. Extensive resident and property owner involvement,
- 2. A more comprehensive analysis of each area's strengths, weakness, and potential,
- 3. A vision for the development and redevelopment of each area,
- 4. A specific plan for the entirety of the each area, not just its vacant parcels,
- 5. Proposals for changes to the Unified Development Ordinance to implement the plan,
- 6. Identification of specific public improvements to streets, water and sewer utilities, and storm water facilities.

Schedule:

The Planning Commission recommends that the first area plan be prepared for the Princess Anne Street / Route 1 North area. The second plan is recommended for the University / Route 1 Central area.

The staff intends to solicit consultants and work through an extensive public involvement process, including charette sessions, to identify strengths, weaknesses, and potential. The project would develop implementing ordinances for public hearing, City Council review, and adoption for the first area in the summer of 2015. The second area plan would then be developed with a February – March time frame for implementing ordinance public hearings and review.

The third area identified as a priority for the development of a small area plan is the downtown area. Staff anticipates a full year for the development of the plan for this area, which is anticipated to begin around April 2016.

Goal Area 3: Economic Vitality

Initiative: Economic Development Analysis and Master Plan

Prepare an economic development analysis and master plan.

Project Team: Karen Hedelt, Director of Econ. Development and Tourism (Lead)

Bill Freehling, Assistant Director of ED&T

City Council Champion: Mayor Greenlaw and Mr. Kelly

Discussion:

The City of Fredericksburg's economic development program is currently guided by the City Council's Goals and Initiatives that are reviewed and adjusted annually by the City Council. In support of these goals, the EDT staff also works closely with the Economic Development Authority which uses the economic development visioning document, "JumpStart!" and the EDA's strategic plan to guide its focus.

Development of an economic analysis will provide an opportunity for the community to engage in and understand the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and challenges of the City as well as decide future economic development priorities. Essential to any study will be a current status review that will provide a basis for planning and a baseline point of reference for evaluation. The analysis and master plan strategies will be the guide and reference for the City's economic development efforts. It will build upon the "JumpStart!" plan, which was adopted in June 2006. The City and the EDA should strive to develop the economic analysis and master plan jointly so future economic development efforts are cohesive.

Staff recommends combining the efforts of a consultant with in-house staff. The economic development consultant could undertake elements of the plan that are outside staff's expertise, while the staff can handle other elements.

There are certain elements that should be part of the City's plan to ensure success. The document should include a current status review as well as best practices information. The plan should have the following attributes:

- 1. **Engages all members of the community.** The plan shouldn't be put together by an elite few, but rather should have broad participation that involves a diverse cross-section of the community. Media relations will be important to raise public awareness, increase participation and engagement levels.
- 2. **Emphasizes implementation and an action plan.** Though the plan is important, the most crucial element is how the priorities are carried out. The plan should have concrete action plans. That will keep stakeholders more engaged and illustrate the value of the plan.
- 3. **Balances the short-term and long-term.** Short-term suggestions will keep the community engaged, but the plan also needs to look at the big picture and the long-

- term vision to ensure it stays relevant beyond the initial years. Strategic plans are generally thought to have a shelf life of about five years.
- 4. **Reaches out to neighboring localities.** Fredericksburg might consider involving Stafford and Spotsylvania counties in some aspects of the plan.
- 5. **Prioritizes key issues.** No community can have everything. Fredericksburg should determine what its assets and opportunities are, and focus on those in the plan.
- 6. **Gathers information about the community through a diverse array of techniques**: steering committees, citizen advisory groups, surveys, interviews, focus groups and town hall meetings. Surveys should be specifically tailored to the realities of our community rather than trying to follow a standard script. The community should be widely notified that the survey is taking place through social media outreach as well as communication with local media sources.
- 7. **Analyzes the community's economy through data** including unemployment and poverty rates, industry mixes, population growth, wages, building permits and more. These data should be tracked over time and compared with peer communities.
- 8. **Creates a specific and achievable vision statement** that both inspires and motivates. Should also contain a mission statement.
- 9. Sets standards for progress with status reports that can be reviewed and updated.

Schedule:

Additional resources will be needed in the FY 2016 budget for consulting assistance with this work. The first step is to develop a budget proposal for the City Council and the EDA for the FY 2016 budget. In the spring of the 2015, if it seems apparent that funding will become available during FY 2016 for the project, then a detailed scope of work and project outline will be prepared in conjunction with a Request for Proposal document.

Staff estimates a twelve-month horizon for the completion of the plan once a contract for consulting assistance is awarded, although this can be refined based upon the scope of work.

Initiative: Develop Baseball Stadium and Training Complex

Provide assistance to Diamond Nation to develop a minor league baseball stadium and amateur training complex in Celebrate Virginia South.

Project Team: Beverly R. Cameron, City Manager (Lead)

Bill Freehling, Asst. Director of Econ. Development and Tourism

City Council Champion: Mayor Greenlaw and Mr. Kelly

Discussion:

The City has been in negotiations over the past two years with the ownership of the Hagerstown Suns and Diamond Nation for the development of a minor league baseball stadium and a baseball / softball training complex in Celebrate Virginia South.

At the time of the development of this plan, the potential partnership between the ownership of the Hagerstown Suns and the ownership of Diamond Nation appears to be off, and the City Treasurer is moving ahead with the sale of the National Slavery Museum site for unpaid taxes. The City is still hopeful that a deal with the Diamond Nation partnership is available.

The City will continue to work with the Silver Company and future potential economic development partners on the development of land in Celebrate Virginia South.

Schedule:

A project schedule for this initiative is not really applicable at this time.

Initiative: Downtown Parking Garage #2

Acquire land and begin development of a second parking garage in the downtown historic district.

Project Team: Beverly R. Cameron, City Manager (Lead)

Bill Freehling, Asst. Director of Econ. Development and Tourism

City Council Champion: Mr. Withers

Discussion:

The key task which lies on the critical path for project implementation is site identification and acquisition. City staff has been actively exploring new sites and reconsidering previously identified sites. Staff has worked closely with Walker Parking Consultants to determine site feasibility and estimated cost of construction for each candidate site. The proposed Capital Improvements Program (FY 2016-2020) identifies funding for land acquisition in FY 2016.

Once a site has been acquired, the parking garage project will proceed using the Public-Private Educational Facilities and Infrastructure Act (PPEA) process.

Schedule:

As identified, the schedule for this project is very dependent upon the identification and acquisition of a site. Once the land is acquired and financing is in place, the design and construction of the garage will take approximately eighteen to twenty-four months, including necessary regulatory approvals.

Goal Area 4: Sustainability and the Natural Environment

Initiative: Prepare an Assessment of the City's Water and Sewer System

Prepare a comprehensive assessment of the City's water and sewer system, with emphasis on prioritization of future upgrades and improvements.

Project Team: Martin Schlesinger, Asst. Director of Public Works for Utilities

Doug Fawcett, Director of Public Works

City Council Champion: Mr. Withers and Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

The City requires a comprehensive knowledge of the conditions of the Water and Sewer Systems in order to properly manage the present infrastructure and plan for future expansions. In order to obtain this information a number of programs are to be conducted. These programs will provide the information necessary to properly prioritize improvements and expansions of the systems.

Water Supply and Distribution system: Four projects are proposed. 1) An in-house study is proposed to identify the current and future potable water needs of the City. This will include discussions with Spotsylvania County officials regarding their plans for the current and any future water treatment facilities. 2) Simultaneously, an independent evaluation of the physical condition of the two water storage facilities should be conducted. This will include recommendations for any required upgrades or reconfiguring of the storage facilities. 3) The various Distribution Zones within the City will be identified and mapped. Utilizing existing knowledge of the system as a guide, field investigations will be conducted to identify the pressures and available fire flows within each of the Distribution Zones. 4) Previously proposed improvements to the system including additional improvements in the College Heights area and in the Caroline Street area are included. Projected cost for these projects over two years is \$6,200,000.

Sewer Collection System: The project will consist of identifying the various sewer basins, determining the conditions of those basins through field testing and flow monitoring. Based on this information, repairs/rehabilitation activities will be identified and recommended. Projected cost for the investigation phase is \$250,000.

Waste Water Treatment Plant: Discussions will be held with representatives from Spotsylvania County regarding the future of the FMC WWTP plant. An independent evaluation of individual plant components and their current condition will also be completed. The Belt Filter Press is near the end of its useful life and should be replaced, at an estimated cost of \$1.5 million. The plant improvements that will be necessary as a result of changes to the Spotsylvania wastewater treatment system are currently estimated to cost approximately \$3 million, over the course of the next couple of fiscal years.

Schedule:

The staff is able to work on various aspects of this during the first six months of calendar year 2015. The time needed for the completion of the analysis will vary somewhat based on the preliminary findings – for example, how many sanitary sewer basins require additional analysis. The staff will also be working through preliminary analysis during the next six months to help develop the scope of work for firms to assist as necessary in more detailed aspects of the condition assessment.

Initiative: Develop a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Plan

Develop and implement a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Plan

Project Team: David King, Assistant Director of Public Works (Lead)

Marty Schlesinger, Assistant Director of Public Works – Utilities Kevin Utt, Stormwater Administrator & Environmental Planner

City Council Champion: Mr. Withers

Discussion:

State and federal regulations require the City to maintain a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer ("MS4") program. Discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems are regulated as point source discharges. Virginia's Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is the designated state regulatory agency charged with enforcement for the program.

The City is classified as a Phase II (small) MS4 locality and is regulated under Virginia's General Permit (VAR04) for the Discharge of Stormwater from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems.

Under the general permit, the City must develop, implement and enforce an MS4 program that includes the following "six minimum control measures":

- Public education and outreach on stormwater impacts
- > Public involvement and participation
- > Illicit discharge detection and elimination
- > Construction site stormwater runoff control
- > Post-construction stormwater management in new development and redevelopment
- > Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal operations

The MS4 program must be designed and implemented to control the discharge of pollutants from the City's storm sewer system to the maximum extent practicable, in a manner that protects the water quality in nearby streams, rivers, wetlands and bays.

MS4 permits are issued on a 5-year cycle, with annual reports due by October 1 of each year. The City developed its MS4 program 7 years ago, and as of FY 2015, is in the 2nd year of its 2nd 5-year permit cycle. The current 5 year permit that was effective July 1, 2013 requires the city to phase in various plan requirements each year for the remainder of the current permit cycle, in addition to ongoing yearly permit requirements. For FY 2014 the city was required to implement 7 additional permit compliance requirements.

Schedule:

Compliance with existing permit conditions is already underway, and will need to continue in FY 2015 and FY 2016. Additional assessments will also take place to determine ongoing capital and operating needs in the development of the FY 2016 budget. The annual program report is due to DEQ by October 1st of each year.

Initiative: Modify Solid Waste Collection Program

Develop and implement a modified solid waste collection program, including strategies to increase recycling, and implement user fees at the Belman Road Convenience Center.

Project Team: Doug Fawcett, Director of Public Works (Lead)

Josh Knight, Superintendent of Public Works

City Council Champion: Mr. Withers

Discussion:

The strategy is presented in three areas, although there is obviously overlap in that actions in one area will have impacts in the others:

a) Residential Solid Waste Collection

Efforts in this area will be focused on continued improvement in the collection of household solid waste from residents of the City. These efforts are more specifically described as follows (with target dates for completion of each of the tasks shown in bold):

- Submission of an evaluation of the pilot program currently underway in the College Heights and Darbytown neighborhoods, including a staff recommendation for continuation/expansion of the once/week, wheeled cart based refuse and recycling collection. (January 15, 2015)
- Evaluation of the feasibility/desirability of establishing mandatory subscription to the City's residential solid waste collection service for residents of single family homes and small multi-family residences. (January 15, 2015)

Note: The FY16 Proposed Public Works Department Operating Budget is being prepared with an assumption that mandatory subscription will be established effective July 1, 2015. Thus, equipment and personnel resources needed to implement mandatory subscription will be reflected in the proposed budget. (The proposed PWD FY16 budget will be submitted no later than **December 11**.)

b) Strategies to Increase Recycling

(These strategies will be considered concurrent with the evaluation of refuse collection practices and are, to a certain extent, dependent on decisions made on refuse collection. Thus, no distinct target dates for implementation of some of these strategies are being provided.)

• All strategies to increase recycling will be based on consistency with a proven approach, i.e., that the easier and more convenient the City can make it for its residents and businesses to recycle, the greater the recycling rate will be.

- Expansion of the wheeled cart approach to recycling collection is one means of
 increasing recycling rates, whether or not once/week solid waste collection with the
 provision of wheeled carts for both refuse and recycling is continued or expanded.
 Provision of larger containers for recycling will encourage recycling even if Public
 Works continues the current refuse collection service (2x/week, no cart for refuse
 provided) in certain neighborhoods.
- Staff will evaluate and make recommendations to begin recycling various materials and to increase rates for recycling of other materials, those materials being:
 - Yard waste;
 - Tree debris, including the leaves collected during the annual leaf collection program;
 - o Concrete (see Note)
 - o Asphalt (see Note)

Note: Primarily as generated by City Shop operations. Efforts have already begun to divert quantities of these materials toward recycling vs. disposal at the landfill (with associated costs.)

The evaluation/implementation of strategies to increase recycling of these materials will be **ongoing during the FY16-17 period**.

- Staff will increase use of social media, as well as direct discussions with neighborhood associations, to discuss recycling ideas/options and to communicate/receive feedback on strategies the City is considering adopting to increase recycling rates. (ongoing)
- c) Implement User Fees at the Belman Road Convenience Center
- City staff will assist and advise R-Board staff and R-Board members in evaluating and selecting methods of implementing fees for disposal of materials at the Convenience Center. Staff's emphasis during this process will be to balance collection of revenues with continuation of reasonable access to the center by City residents, with a focus on minimizing the need for City residents to transport materials directly to the Eskimo Hill Landfill. (ongoing, as needed and requested.)

Schedule:

The schedule is generally included in the discussion above. The user fees at Belman Road are to be implemented no sooner than March 1, 2015.

Goal Area 5: Parks, Recreation, and Open Space

Initiative: Prepare A/E Plans for Riverfront Park

Complete architectural and engineering design, in accordance with the Riverfront Park Concept Plan endorsed by City Council in September 2014, and to construct the Park beginning in Fiscal Year 2018.

Project Team: Beverly R. Cameron, City Manager (Lead)

Robert K. Antozzi, Director of PRPF

Riverfront Park Task Force

City Council Champion: Ms. Devine

Discussion:

The City Council has agreed to advance park design during FY 2016 and FY 2017. Funding will be included in the proposed Capital Improvements Program (FY 2016-2020) for the park. Key tasks include the following: negotiation and award of contract for architectural services; issuance of bonds for design costs – a component of the winter 2015 bond issue. The duration of design work should be approximately 18 months, beginning in July 2016.

Currently, park construction is scheduled to begin in FY 2018. The project delivery method will likely be design-bid-build.

Schedule:

The general schedule is outlined above.

Initiative: Improve Access to Alum Springs Park

Identify solutions to improve access to the Alum Springs Park, including the possible construction of a bridge over Hazel Run.

Project Team: Michael Ward, Division Manager of Parks & Athletics (Lead)

David King, Assistant Director of Public Works

City Council Champion: Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

The entrance to Alum Springs Park currently utilizes a ford crossing of Hazel Run. This crossing has shown a steady deterioration since 2009, and needs to be addressed. City staff has obtained several construction cost estimates on replacing the ford with a one-lane bridge over Hazel Run, which range between \$950,000 and \$1.2 million.

Schedule:

The City Council, staff, and the Recreation Commission will need to settle on a preferred option for repairing the ford. Depending upon the timing and availability of funds, improvements to the Alum Springs Park entrance could occur in FY 2016. Final project schedules also depend upon the options selected.

Goal Area 6: Public Safety

Initiative: Provide All-hours ALS Capability

Provide Advanced Life Support Capability 24 hours daily / 7 days per week; increase staffing resources over the next three years.

Project Team: Eddie Allen, Fire Chief

Mike Jones, Deputy Fire Chief

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager

City Council Champion: Ms. Devine

Discussion:

For several years, the City has provided emergency medical services based upon a hybrid paid / volunteer system. The City Fire Department provides paid staff, trained at the Advanced Life Support (ALS) level, on Monday – Friday from 5:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. On nights and weekends, the Fredericksburg Rescue Squad provided volunteer coverage, most often at the BLS (Basic Life Support) level. If the FRS had ALS providers available, then that level of service was provided during the overnight / weekend hours. However, if an ALS call was received and the FRS did not have an ALS unit available, then a Firefighter / Medic from the City's Fire Suppression crew assisted in the response, or the City requested mutual aid from a neighboring locality. In addition, call volume has increased in recent years. The City Council has expressed a desire to increase ALS availability to 24 hours / 7 days per week, and this was an Initiative from the last term as well. The intent is to increase coverage by supplementing the volunteer resources available through the Fredericksburg Rescue Squad.

The City during FY 2015 hired three additional Medics capable of providing Advanced Life Support (ALS) services on emergency medical calls. The City now has paid staff available for one unit during weekend daylight hours. Additional staffing and funding will be required to extend the coverage available during the week.

Schedule:

The basic implementation schedule is dependent upon the addition of staff during the FY 2016 and FY 2017 budget process. The Fire Department estimates that nine additional medics would be necessary to implement full paid ALS coverage of at least one unit, and the three hired during FY 2015 leaves an additional six to achieve full coverage.

Initiative: Upgrade City's Public Safety Radio System

Evaluate options and identify preferred methods of upgrading the City's public safety radio system.

Project Team: Eddie Allen, Fire Chief

Beverly R. Cameron, City Manager

David Nye, Police Chief

City Council Champion: Mr. Ellis

Discussion:

A study is currently underway to determine the preferred manner of upgrading the City's public safety radio system. Key tasks include the following:

Task 1 – Develop Project Plan

Task 2 – System Needs Assessment and Evaluation

Task 3 – Radio System Options and Coverage Analysis

Task 4 – Final Assessment Report and Recommendations

After acceptance of the final report, staff will develop a detailed plan for implementation. The proposed Capital Improvements Program identifies funding for the radio system upgrades in FY 2017 and FY 2018.

One important decision question that will emerge from the initial study is whether the City should partner with one of the adjoining counties, or develop its own upgraded radio system. If partnering is the preferred method, the City and the selected County will need to begin detailed discussions about project design, cost allocation, and the scope of infrastructure sharing.

Schedule:

The next key milestone is the delivery of the final assessment report and recommendations, which is expected in January 2015. Based on the findings of the report, staff will be able to better develop the next steps and final timelines.

Initiative: Prepare A/E Plans for Fire Station #3

Prepare architectural and engineering plans for Fire Station #3 in Celebrate Virginia South.

Project Team: Eddie Allen, Fire Chief (Lead)

Mike Jones, Deputy Fire Chief

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager

City Council Sponsor: Ms. Devine and Mr. Kelly

Discussion:

The City has land available for the construction of Fire Station #3 in Celebrate Virginia South. The new Station will improve response times in Celebrate Virginia, Central Park, and northern sections of the City along Fall Hill Avenue.

The City will need to procure architectural and engineering services in the upcoming fiscal year.

Schedule:

The City Council included funds for architectural and engineering services in FY 2016 in the current draft of the Capital Improvements Plan. If adopted, the staff will move to procure these services and design the building during the upcoming fiscal year. Construction could occur in FY 2017, if funding permits.

Goal Area 7: Transportation

Initiative: Maximize VDOT Revenue Sharing Funds for Transportation

Maximize the use of VDOT Revenue Sharing funds for road maintenance and traffic signalization upgrades, with a target of obtaining \$1 million annually.

Project Team: Doug Fawcett, Director of Public Works (Lead)

Amanda Lickey, Budget Manager

City Council Champion: Mr. Withers

Discussion:

The VDOT Revenue Sharing program allows dollar-for-dollar matching funds for a variety of transportation purposes and projects. The City has utilized this program for a variety of projects, including extensive re-paving work in various areas of the City, and rebuilding the bridges of Fall Hill Avenue over the Rappahannock Canal and the bridge of U.S. 1 over State Route 3.

The City's most recent application to VDOT includes funds for three projects. The first is the replacement and re-building of five aged signals in the downtown area, including three on Amelia Street and two on Lafayette Boulevard. The second project is the rehabilitation of the bridge of U.S. 1 over Hazel Run. The third project is milling and resurfacing Princess Anne Street from Charlotte Street to Dixon Street.

Schedule:

The City's application for the FY 2016 round of Revenue Sharing was due October 31st, and it has been submitted. Final funding decisions will be made by the Commonwealth Transportation Board. Approved projects will be implemented by Public Works in FY 2016, which begins July 1, 2015, after approved funds become available.

In addition to the FY 2016 projects, the City will need to develop priorities for FY 2017 Revenue Sharing projects during the summer and autumn of 2015.

Goal Area 8: Governance

Initiative: IT Strategic Plan - Begin Implementation

Begin implementation of the IT Strategic Plan with emphasis on the highest priority recommendation:

- a) Transition to the next generation Enterprise Resource Platform
- b) Consolidate Police and Fire Technology into integrated public safety technology platform
- c) Establish Media and Communications Specialist role and centralize web content management.

Sub - Initiative a) Transition to the next generation Enterprise Resource Platform

Project Team: Suzanne Tills, Chief Information Officer (Lead)

Janet Murphy, IT Business Analyst

Additional Business Analyst (Funding Required)

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager

Key Customers - Department Directors & Officers

City Council Champion: Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

The 2015 IT Strategic Plan's key recommendation was that the City needs to begin the process of replacing the current Enterprise Resource Platform from the current vendor. The City's Organizational Study also recommends replacement of the system. The current product was purchased 27 years ago, and has served the City well for many years. However, it is not user-friendly, particularly to new staff, and the system has not had a major re-write of the original code for some time. In addition, there are concerns about the ongoing stability of the vendor and the ability to provide the necessary software support in the future.

The AS/400 platform that the City currently utilizes is being phased out, and newer software packages are developed on different platforms.

The project is very complex, and will take several years to implement. IT staff will be leading the effort, with major departmental users heavily involved as well. The 2015 IT Strategic Plan consultant also recommends that the City hire an additional Business Analyst to support the ongoing system needs of the City, and the new position would be integral in the implementation of this project. The City will need assistance during the implementation process from IT consultants as well.

Schedule:

The staff is currently monitoring the existing system and gathering information on possible transition issues as well as planning for the initial project phases. The City Council will

consider the necessary funding for the project, beginning with the FY 2016 budget cycle, for both capital and operating needs.

Assuming funds are available, the City will proceed with development of formal requirements and issue Requests for Proposals during the 3rd quarter of calendar 2015. The vendor (or vendors, depending upon the software chosen) will work with the transition team to implement the system, beginning with the 4th quarter of calendar 2015 through calendar 2016 and into the first part of 2017.

<u>Sub - Initiative b) Consolidate Police and Fire Technology into integrated public safety</u> technology platform

Project Team: Suzanne Tills, Chief Information Officer (Lead)

Misheck Mundia, Assistant Director of Information Technology

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager Kemper Bane, Network Administrator

Joseph Cornelius, Network Support Specialist

Eddie Allen, Fire Chief

Charles Sterne, Battalion Chief

David Nye, Police Chief

City Council Champion: Mr. Ellis and Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

Currently, the Information Technology services for the City's Fire Department are provided within the Fire Department. The 2015 IT Strategic Plan recommends developing a Service Level Agreement between the Fire Department and the IT Department. Afterwards, the City's IT Department will provide IT service and support to the Fire Department on a common Public Safety domain. The City's Organizational Study also recommends the centralization of IT functions accompanied by a Service Level Agreement.

Schedule:

In order to provide for the necessary support, the 2015 IT Strategic Plan as well as the City's Organizational Study recommends the addition of a technical service position in the IT Department. This will go through the budget process, and Council will have an opportunity to review the budget recommendations in the second quarter of calendar year 2015 for FY 2016. The development of the project schedule for the remainder of the project will depend upon the resources available.

<u>Sub-Initiative c)</u> Establish Media and Communications Specialist role and centralize web content management.

Project Team: Suzanne Tills, Chief Information Officer (Lead)

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager

Amanda Lickey, Budget Manager

City Council Champion: Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

The City's Organizational Study and the City's 2015 IT Strategic Plan both reference a recommendation to provide a staff position dedicated to public information type functions, with a focus on improving the City's communications with the public in various ways. The 2015 IT Strategic Plan refers to the position as a Media and Communications Specialist, and emphasizes the need for content management and updating content on the City's web site and social media platforms.

In order to implement this recommendation, the City will need to add the position through the budget process. The City Council will weigh this request along with other requests and the City Manager's recommendations on the budget in the second quarter of calendar year 2015, as part of the annual budget process.

Schedule:

The schedule for this project is dependent upon additional funding, which Council may consider as part of the FY 2016 budget.

Initiative: Continue Implementing Novak Report

Use the Novak Report as a guide for providing systematic improvements to City government's overall effectiveness and efficiency of service delivery.

Project Team: Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager (Lead)

Beverly R. Cameron, City Manager

City Council Champion: Mayor Greenlaw

Discussion:

The January 2013 City of Fredericksburg Organizational Study, done by the Novak Consulting Group, provided a list of 73 recommendations for possible improvements to the City's services. The recommendations vary in complexity and in their need for additional resources. Some have been implemented, while others are in process or require additional funding. Several of the recommendations, such as 24/7 ALS Emergency Medical Service, are reflected as City Council Initiatives for the term.

Staff intends to continue to use the Organizational Study to develop recommendations for funding in the FY 2016 budget. In addition, progress on the recommendations will continue to be tracked and followed in the current and upcoming fiscal years.

Schedule:

The City Manager's Recommended Budget for FY 2016 will be released in March 2015, and it will contain funding recommendations for FY 2016. The City Council, during March – May 2015, will review the budget recommendations and adopt a final budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The Novak study will be a part of the process of decision-making. The staff will continue to update the City Council and the public on the progress towards implementing the remaining recommendations.

Initiative: Proffer Policies

Develop City Proffer and Special Use Policies

Project Team: Kathleen Dooley, City Attorney (Lead)

Charles Johnston, Director of Community Planning & Building

Amanda Lickey, Budget Manager

Clarence Robinson, Director of Fiscal Affairs

David MacIndoe, Assistant Director of Fiscal Affairs

Michael Craig, Zoning Administrator

Marne Sherman, Development Administrator & Code Enforcement

Hunter Snellings, Community Development Planner

City Council Champion: Mr. Kelly

Discussion:

The goal of this project is to produce guidelines for use by developers, residents, the Planning Commission and the City Council in the assessment of proffers for zoning map amendments and conditions for special use applicants. The project team proposes to collect data and bring a preliminary analysis to City Council for its input. Then, the project team would prepare final proposed guidelines. The initial guidelines will focus on two primary public impacts of private development – schools and public safety services. This work should form a basis to develop future guidelines addressing transportation impacts of development.

The City Attorney has prepared a background report on the current status of proffers in the City, the legal parameters of proffers in Virginia, the history of proffers in the City, and the difference between proffers (tied to zoning changes) and Special Use / Special Exception conditions (granted with Special Use or Special Exception permits).

In addition to the City Attorney's research, the planning staff has collected information from other similar jurisdictions. The preliminary research will be combined with additional research into specific school guidelines and specific guidelines for emergency services into a preliminary report for the City Manager and subsequently City Council review. The City Council review of the preliminary report will allow for feedback into the final development of policies, which will involve additional review by the Planning Commission and the City Council.

Schedule:

The draft of the preliminary report to the City Manager is underway, but much additional research and thought is necessary. The second quarter of calendar year 2015 is a good target for that. The reviews by the City Manager and City Council should be completed within ninety days after the delivery of the first report. The final reviews of the revised proposal should be well underway, if not completed, by the close of calendar year 2015.

The results of this work should be available to inform budget and capital improvement program development for FY 2017.

Goal Area 9: Education

Initiative: School Enrollment

Work with the Fredericksburg City School Board to update and revise school enrollment projections.

Project Team: Amanda Lickey, Budget Manager (Lead)

Mark Whitley, Assistant City Manager

FCPS Team

City Council Champion: Dr. Duffy

Discussion:

During the discussion of the Capital Improvements Projects at the City Council Planning Retreat it became evident that the Council desires to have an updated assessment of future enrollment projects to assist in prioritizing school capital needs. This project will be completed as a collaborative effort with City Schools.

Generally, the steps involved are as follows:

- 1. **Data collection and preliminary analysis:** collect and analyze current enrollment data to determine if full or partial update to existing space analysis is needed. Costs for this study could range between \$4,000 and \$8,150 depending upon the scope of work.
- 2. **Complete Facility Study Update:** if enrollment projections and actual use of space differ significantly from the 2012 survey then it is suggested the City Schools complete a full building program capacity study. If growth and use are on par with the 2012 study then it is suggest the study be updated with actual student enrollment and population growth trends.
- 3. **Review study and provide an update to City Council:** the results of this process can be used to prioritize the School Capital Projects and incorporated in the Capital Improvements Plan.

Schedule:

The project schedule generally involves meeting with the appropriate School Board staff in December 2014. At that time an appropriate schedule for the updates can be determined. Depending upon the actual enrollment figures and the level of update chosen, updating the enrollment projections may take several months.